codex alimentarius commission



FOOD AND AGRICULTURE ORGANIZATION OF THE UNITED NATIONS



JOINT OFFICE: Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 ROME Tel: 39 06 57051 www.codexalimentarius.net Email: codex@fao.org Facsimile: 39 06 5705 4593

ALINORM 09/32/36

JOINT FAO/WHO FOOD STANDARDS PROGRAMME

CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

32nd Session

Rome, Italy, 29 June - 4 July 2009

REPORT OF THE 16th SESSION OF THE FAO/WHO COORDINATING COMMITTEE FOR LATIN AMERICA AND THE CARIBBEAN

Acapulco, Mexico

10 – 14 November 2008

ALINORM 09/32/36

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Summary and conclusions	page iii
Report of the 16th Session of the FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Latin America and the Caribbean	page 1
Summary status of work	page 12
	Paragraphs
Introduction	
Opening of the Session	2
Adoption of the Provisional Agenda (Agenda item 1)	3-4
Matters arising from the Codex Alimentarius Commission and other subsidiary bodies (Agenda item 2)	5-10
Implementation of the Codex Strategic Plan 2008 – 2013 (Agenda item 2.1)	11-13
Activities of FAO and WHO complementary to the work of the Codex Alimentarius Commission (Agenda item 3)	14-16
Activities of the STDF Programme in the Region (Agenda item 3.1)	17-20
National food control systems and consumer participation in food standards setting (Agenda item 4)	21
Use of Codex standards at national and regional level (Agenda item 5)	
Nutritional issues within the Region (Agenda item 6)	
Issues of significance to the Region (Agenda item 7)	
- Allocation of resources of the Codex Trust Fund	33-40
- Length and content of Codex reports	41-48
- Simultaneous and timely distribution of Codex documents in the official languages of the Commission	49-52
- Consensus	53-54
- Risk analysis principles applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues	55-58
- Private standards	59-63
Nomination of the Coordinator (Agenda item 8)	64-65
Other business and future work (Agenda item 9)	
Future work	
- Proposal for the development of a regional standard for culantro coyote (Agenda item 9a)	66-72
- Proposal for the development of a regional standard for lucuma (Agenda item 9b)	73-76
- Proposal for the elaboration of a regional standard for quinoa (Agenda item 9c)	77-79
Other business	
- Grated desiccated coconut	80
- Steviol glycosides	81-82
Date and place of the next session (Agenda item 10)	83
Appendices	
Appendix I – List of Participants	page 13
<u>Appendix II</u> – Proposal of new criteria for the allocation of funds - Codex Alimentarius Trust Fund	page 22

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

The 16th Session of the FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Latin America and the Caribbean reached the following conclusions:

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

The Committee:

Implementation of the Codex Strategic Plan 2008 - 2013

 recognized the need for strengthening National Codex Committees and Codex Contact Points in countries of the Region in order to ensure effective participation of countries in the work of the Commission and its subsidiary bodies (Activity 5.4) and the important role that the parent organizations could play in providing technical assistance in this regard (para. 12);

Length and content of Codex reports

- agreed to ask the Commission to reconsider the recommendations on the naming of members (point 1, second indent) and to rescind the recommendation in point 2 of paragraph 26 of ALINORM 08/31/3A (para. 44);
- decided to request the Committee on General Principles to determine whether the current provision in the Procedural Manual under Point 1 of Rule X – Records and Reports – and the final paragraph of the Section Conduct of Meetings – Guidelines on the Conduct of Meetings of the Codex Committees and Ad Hoc Intergovernmental Task Forces was the same as the recommendation approved by the Commission on the naming of members (point 1, second indent, paragraph 26 of ALINORM 08/31/3A) and if it was not, to determine whether both needed to be retained and, if they were the same, that a decision by taken on one of them (para. 48);

Simultaneous and timely distribution of Codex documents in the official languages of the Commission

- agreed to propose that the Commission consider a new provision for inclusion in the Procedural Manual to the effect that Codex documents should be distributed in a simultaneous and timely manner in the official languages of the Codex and that no Codex document should be distributed when this provision could not be met (para. 52);

Nomination of the Coordinator

- unanimously agreed to recommend to the Commission that Mexico be reappointed for a second term as coordinator for Latin America and the Caribbean (para. 64);

Future work

- agreed to propose new work on regional standards for culantro coyote and lucuma, subject to approval by the Commission on the basis of the critical evaluation carried out in the Executive Committee (paras. 72 and 76).

MATTERS REFERRED TO CODEX COMMITTEES AND TASK FORCES:

The Committee:

Committee on General Principles

Terms of reference for coordinating committees

- decided to request the Commission, through the Committee on General Principles, to clarify whether the current terms of reference for the Coordinating Committees could be interpreted to give them full freedom to issue regional opinions on all themes under discussion in Codex of strategic importance to the region concerned. If the response of the Committee on General Principles and the Commission to this question was affirmative, there would be no need to modify the terms of reference (para. 9);
- agreed, in relation to the request from the Committee on General Principles, that it be informed of the experiences of Coordinating Committees on the adoption of regional positions and that such reporting be made after receiving clarification on the above question, while noting that the last session of the Coordinating Committee had taken positions on various matters (para. 10);

Consensus

acknowledged the importance of consensus-based decision-making in Codex and agreed on a proposed definition that could be taken as a starting point for discussion in the Committee on General Principles (para. 54);

Committee on Pesticide Residues

Risk analysis principles applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues

- supported the revision of the principles to strengthen the scientific basis of the process (para. 58);

Committee on Food Additives

Steviol glycosides

- expressed its great interest in supporting work on steviol glycosides within the Committee on Food Additives by developing maximum levels for steviol glycosides for conclusion in the Codex General Standard for Food Additives (para. 82).

MATTERS OF INTEREST TO FAO AND WHO:

The Committee:

Activities of FAO and WHO complementary to the work of the Codex Alimentarius Commission

- expressed its appreciation of the valuable support received from FAO and WHO and requested that technical assistance be continued in the following specific areas: integrated and risk-based food control systems, establishment of national food safety agencies, generation of scientific data to support risk assessment and management, formulation of national food safety policy and implementation strategies (para. 16);

Allocation of funds of the Codex Trust Fund

- agreed to request the Secretariat of the Joint FAO/WHO Codex Trust Fund to give due consideration to the proposals presented in Appendix II of the present report and to request FAO and WHO to facilitate dialogue between donor countries and beneficiary countries so that identified concerns and proposals for improvement were openly discussed (para. 40).

OTHER MATTERS OF INTEREST

The Committee:

Activities of the STDF Programme in the Region

noted that the STDF Programme was meant to complement technical assistance provided by FAO and WHO, with a focus on links between trade and implementation of standards, and invited delegations to address their specific questions directly to the Secretariat of the STDF and to refer to further information about the STDF available on its website (paras. 19-20);

National food control systems and consumer participation in food standards setting

- noted the current status and recent developments of food control, food legislation, equivalence agreements, Codex structures and consumer participation in standard-setting activities (para. 21);

Use of Codex standards at national and regional level

- noted that the non-use of Codex standards for the harmonization of regulations could be due to several factors, including delays in standards development and rapidly changing environments surrounding food legislation. It therefore recognized that monitoring the use of Codex standards was an important measure of the relevance of Codex standards and agreed to use a common format when submitting this information (paras. 23 and 24);
- encouraged all members of the Region to report on their use of Codex standards and related texts in order to obtain a clear and updated picture of the use of Codex standards and the reasons justifying the failure to fully or partially adopt those standards in order to evaluate the Codex normative function (para. 28);

Private standards

- agreed that Codex work should be strengthened in order to discourage the use and proliferation of private standards and that the Commission should adopt a position in relation to this matter; and encouraged the members of the Region to consider concrete actions that could be taken in the framework of Codex (para. 63);

Future work

- invited the Delegation of Bolivia to submit a revised project document on the need for a regional standard for Quinoa which the Committee could examine at its next session (para. 79).

INTRODUCTION

1. The 16th Session of the FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Latin America and the Caribbean was held in Acapulco from 10 to 14 November 2008, at the kind invitation of the Government of Mexico. The Chairperson of the Committee, Dr Francisco Ramos Gómez, Director General, General Bureau of Standards, appointed Ms Ingrid Maciel, International Standardization Director, Ministry of Economy, to act as Vice-chairperson of the Committee. The Session was attended by delegates from 26 member countries, observers from two member countries outside the Region, one regional intergovernmental organization and one international nongovernmental organization. The list of participants is provided in Appendix I to this report.

OPENING OF THE SESSION

2. The Session was officially opened by Dr Francisco Ramos Gómez. Mr Eduardo Jaramillo Navarrete, Executive Director of International Operations of the General Coordination of the Federal Health System, Federal Commission for Protection against Health Risks, Secretariat for Health, and Mrs Aida Albuerne Piña, Federal Inspector of Consumer Protection, also welcomed the Committee. Dr Norman Bellino, FAO Representative in Mexico and Dr Sergio Garay, WHO-PAHO Representative in Mexico, addressed the Committee on behalf of FAO and WHO respectively. In addition, Dr Knud Østergaard, Vice-Chairperson of the Codex Alimentarius Commission, addressed the Committee on behalf of Dr Karen Huleback, Chairperson of the Commission.

ADOPTION OF THE PROVISIONAL AGENDA (Agenda item 1)¹

3. The Committee agreed to consider the following matters in addition to those scheduled for discussion in the provisional agenda:

- Agenda item 7 Issues of significance to the Region: risk analysis principles applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues, private standards, consensus, simultaneous and timely distribution of Codex documents in the official languages of the Commission, and additional matters relating to the length and content of Codex reports, namely the recording of names of delegations, and the opening of substantive discussion during adoption of the report.
- Agenda item 9 Other business: steviol glycosides (estevia) and grated desiccated coconut.

4. The Committee adopted the provisional agenda as its agenda for the Session with the above proposals, on the understanding that discussion of these matters would be subject to availability of time.

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND OTHER SUBSIDIARY BODIES (Agenda Item 2) 2

5. The Committee noted the matters referred by the 30^{th} and 31^{st} Sessions of the Commission for information and also noted that several other matters would be discussed under other agenda items. Discussions held and decisions made on specific items were as follows:

Participation of developing countries in Codex meetings

6. The Committee recalled that the Commission, at its 31st Session, had recommended that the Coordinating Committees consider the issue of participation of developing countries and report their views to the 32nd Session of the Commission³. The Committee noted that a document with data on the participation of developing countries in Codex sessions and proposals to improve the situation was under preparation by the Codex Secretariat, and would be presented to the 25th Session of the Committee on General Principles. The Secretariat was currently extracting information on country participation from the lists of participants attached to Codex meeting reports, for the purpose of preparing the said document, in accordance with the request made at the last session of the Commission. The Secretariat was also preparing a response to a request made by the Committee on Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures (SPS Committee) of the World Trade Organization (WTO) regarding the status of participation of developing countries in the work of the three standard setting bodies referred to in the Agreement on the Application of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures (SPS Agreement).

¹ CX/LAC 08/16/1.

² CX/LAC 08/16/2.

³ ALINORM 07/31/REP, paras 152-162.

7. The Committee noted the indication of several delegations that the above-mentioned document should not only comprise statistics on participation but should also analyse the impact of the Codex Trust Fund on enhancing the participation of developing countries. The Codex Secretariat informed the Committee that the analysis on participation in the last 12 months was nearing completion and that this was being extended to previous years, the actual number of years of study depending on the human resources available to the Secretariat. The delegations expressed their dissatisfaction with this information, particularly regarding the current status of preparation of the study in relation to the human and material resources needed to complete the work in a satisfactory manner. The delegations also expressed their concern over the timeframe of the study which would be insufficient to analyse the participation of developing countries. They therefore emphasized that such a study should analyse the participation of those countries during a sufficiently long period of at least one to two years before the Codex Trust Fund was established. In addition, the study should be sent to countries sufficiently in advance before the next meeting of the Committee on General Principles. Many delegations expressed the view that equal participation of developed and developing countries in the standard-setting process was of utmost importance and that information on the participation of developing countries was essential in evaluating the current situation and identifying future actions to be taken.

8. Some delegations suggested that Codex members be invited to put forward proposals to improve the participation of developing countries. The Committee recalled that the Commission had requested the Codex Secretariat to prepare proposals to enhance the current situation and noted that this course of action agreed on by the Commission would, however, not prevent Codex members from presenting their proposals at the 25th Session of the Committee on General Principles.

Terms of reference of the Coordinating Committees

9. After some discussion, the Committee decided to request the Commission, through the 25th Session of the Committee on General Principles, to clarify whether the current terms of reference for the Coordinating Committees could be interpreted to give them full freedom to issue regional opinions on all themes under discussion in Codex of strategic importance to the region concerned. If the response of the Committee on General Principles and the Commission to this question was affirmative, there would be no need to modify the terms of reference.

10. In relation to the request from the Committee on General Principles that it be informed of experiences of the Coordinating Committees on the adoption of regional positions, the Committee agreed that such reporting be made after receiving clarification on the above question, while noting that the last session of the Coordinating Committee had taken positions on various matters.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CODEX STRATEGIC PLAN 2008-2013 (Agenda item 2.1)⁴

11. The Committee noted that the 31st Session of the Commission had agreed to bring to the attention of Coordinating Committees the following activities in the Strategic Plan for their follow-up:

- Activity 4.5 Promoting interdisciplinary coordination at national and regional level;
- Activity 5.4 Strengthening Codex Contact Points and National Codex Committees; and
- Activity 5.5 Enhancing participation of non-governmental organizations at international, regional and national levels.

12. The Committee noted several good practices conducted and reported by members of the Region in the implementation of these activities. In relation to Activity 5.4, the Committee recognized the need for strengthening National Codex Committees and Codex Contact Points in countries of the Region in order to ensure effective participation of countries in the work of the Commission and its subsidiary bodies, and the important role that the parent organizations could play in providing technical assistance in this regard.

13. The Committee further noted that there were other activities identified in the Strategic Plan for which implementation had been entrusted to the Coordinating Committees. In this regard, the Committee agreed that Activity 1.2 (Review and develop Codex standards and related texts for food quality) could be considered under Agenda item 9 on the basis of the outcome of its discussions on proposals for new work, and that Activities 1.7 and 2.6 (Encourage FAO/WHO to expand capacity building programmes and to provide training and capacity building on risk analysis for food safety) would be taken up when considering activities of FAO and WHO that were complementary to the work of the Commission under Agenda item 3.

⁴ CX/LAC 08/16/2; CL 2008/16-LAC, Parts C and A.2 (i) and (ii); comments from Bolivia, Chile, Costa Rica, Cuba, Guatemala, El Salvador and Uruguay (CX/LAC 08/16/3 and CX/LAC 08/16/6); Barbados, Brazil, Haiti and Jamaica (CX/LAC 08/16/3-Add.1 and CX/LAC 08/16/6-Add.1); Dominican Republic (CRD 2); Cuba (CRD 3); and Paraguay (CRD 5).

ACTIVITIES OF FAO AND WHO COMPLEMENTARY TO THE WORK OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION (Agenda item 3)⁵

14. The Representative of FAO presented part I of the document describing the FAO and WHO capacity building activities implemented since the last session of the Committee, which were supportive, in particular, of Activities 1.7, 2.6 and 5.4 of the Codex Strategic Plan. The Representative described technical assistance grouped under six categories: supporting material, information exchange mechanisms, international events, global projects, regional activities, and national or subregional projects. The Representative highlighted major activities and outputs in the areas of strengthening integrated food control systems, risk analysis, microbial risk assessment, inspection and laboratory services, national Codex structures, and food safety policy, and referred to the importance of designing assistance based on an initial evaluation of the specific regional and national needs and on needs expressed at the Codex Coordinating Committees and the FAO and WHO conferences.

15. The Representative of WHO presented part II of the document which summarized the FAO/WHO expert meetings and consultations held since the last session of the Committee to provide scientific advice to Codex and to member countries and highlighted the major outcomes. An update on the status of requests for scientific advice was also provided.

16. The members of the Committee expressed their appreciation of the valuable support received from FAO and WHO and requested that technical assistance be continued in the following specific areas: integrated and risk-based food control systems, establishment of national food safety agencies, generation of scientific data to support risk assessment and management, formulation of national food safety policy and implementation strategies. The Representatives of FAO and WHO welcomed the requests which would be considered in the preparation of the next work plans of FAO and WHO activities.

ACTIVITIES OF THE STDF PROGRAMME IN THE REGION (Agenda item 3.1)⁶

17. In the absence of a representative from the Secretariat of the Standards and Trade Development Facility (STDF), the Codex Secretariat introduced the document providing key information on the STDF, which is a global programme on capacity building and technical co-operation in the area of food safety and animal and plant health, established by FAO, WHO, the World Organization for Animal Health (OIE), the World Bank and WTO in 2002.

18. The STDF aims to: i) act as a vehicle for coordination among technical co-operation providers, mobilization of funds, exchange of experience and dissemination of good practice; and ii) assist developing countries in enhancing their capacity to analyse and implement international standards with the objective of improving human, animal and plant health, and thus gaining and maintaining market access.

19. The Committee noted that the STDF was meant to complement technical assistance provided by FAO and WHO, with a focus on the links between trade and implementation of standards. Project preparation grants were a key mechanism to assist developing countries in converting their needs into a full project, which could later be implemented through funding by donors.

20. Several delegations expressed their keen interest in the STDF and the possibilities of technical assistance that it offered. The Committee invited delegations to address their specific questions, such as those relating to country eligibility and project size, directly to the Secretariat of the STDF, located in the World Trade Organization (WTO), and to refer to further information about the STDF available at <u>www.standardsfacility.org</u>

NATIONAL FOOD CONTROL SYSTEMS AND CONSUMER PARTICIPATION IN FOOD STANDARDS SETTING (Agenda item 4) 7

21. The Committee noted comments submitted by members of the Region on the current status and recent developments of food control, food legislation, equivalence agreements, Codex structures and consumer participation in standard-setting activities as follows:

- most national food control systems involved several ministries, making coordination among different agencies challenging;
- most countries of the Region were making efforts to align regulatory frameworks with the requirements of the WTO SPS/TBT Agreements;

⁵ CX/LAC 08/16/4, Parts I and II.

⁶ CX/LAC 08/16/5.

⁷ CL 2008/16-LAC, Part A (excluding Part A.2 (i) and (ii)); comments from Bolivia, Chile, Costa Rica, Cuba, Guatemala, El Salvador and Uruguay (CX/LAC 08/16/6); Barbados, Brazil, Haiti and Jamaica (CX/LAC 08/16/6-Add.1); Dominican Republic (CRD 2); Cuba (CRD 3); and Paraguay (CRD 5).

- the countries of the Region were actively seeking trade facilitation mechanisms, for instance, the use of equivalence agreements for sanitary registration. Notification of such agreements to the WTO SPS/TBT Committees would greatly improve transparency;
- there was a continuous need to build capacity related to food safety, risk analysis, implementation of early warning systems and strengthening of laboratory networks and national Codex structures. Coordination between the Inter-American Laboratory Network (RILA) and Codex Contact Points could be improved;
- Codex Contact Points were engaged in coordination and communication activities in many countries. National Codex Committees served as effective mechanisms to foster inter-agency coordination and dialogue, while allowing the participation of other interested parties in Codex work;
- there was a need to strengthen consumer participation in Codex work at national level. In some countries, the participation of consumer organizations was not institutionalized due to resource constraints, while in others their participation was focused on issues of particular interest to consumers, such as nutrition and food labelling.

USE OF CODEX STANDARDS AT NATIONAL AND REGIONAL LEVEL (Agenda item 5)⁸

22. The Committee recalled that this agenda item had been added by the 57th Session of the Executive Committee for consideration by the Coordinating Committees in order to obtain their views on how Codex standards and related texts were used at national and regional levels.

23. The Committee noted with satisfaction, on the basis of the written comments provided in response to CL 2008/16-LAC Part B, that members in the Region were, in general, proactively using Codex standards as the basis for their national regulations. The Committee, however, noted that harmonization was impeded by diverging national regulations in certain areas, such as nutrition labelling, and that non-use of Codex standards could be due to several factors, including delays in standards development and rapidly changing environments surrounding food legislation.

24. The Committee, noting the status of Codex standards as international reference points for harmonization, and recognizing that monitoring the use of Codex standards was an important measure of the relevance of Codex standards, agreed to build on the current round of successful information exchange, recommending that members in the Region used a common format when submitting information on the use of Codex standards.

25. In this regard, the Committee reviewed the notification formats used by Mexico and El Salvador in their written submissions and agreed that, in the future, information on the use of Codex standards should be submitted in a table with three columns: (a) national standard or regulation (title, code, date of application), (b) corresponding Codex standard or related text (title, code), and (c) indication of full or partial use of the Codex text, together with the reason for partial use.

26. The Committee also agreed that information on the use of Codex standards would be submitted, to the extent possible, by members of the Region to the former Coordinator (Argentina) for publication on the website of the Committee, as and when a new national standard or regulation was adopted on the basis of a Codex standard. The Committee would then review, at each session, the overall status of the use of Codex standards by the countries of the Region, on the basis of the data gathered on the website. Members could continue to submit information on their use of Codex standards every two years in reply to a Circular Letter, as in the past.

27. In reply to a question as to whether the reporting should focus on mandatory regulations or should include non-mandatory national standards, the Committee agreed that the information collection exercise should be as inclusive as possible and should include voluntary national standards, if these were based on Codex standards.

28. The Committee agreed to encourage all members of the Region to report their use of Codex standards and related texts in a timely and comprehensive manner, in order to obtain a clear, updated picture of the use of Codex standards in the Region, and the reasons justifying the failure to fully or partially adopt the Codex standards, in order to evaluate the Codex normative function. Codex Contact Points were encouraged to inform WTO SPS and TBT focal points in their country of this exercise starting within the Region. The Committee also noted that in the future inter-regional comparison might become possible, if other regions started using the same or equivalent reporting format for compilation of data on the use of Codex standards.

 ⁸ CX/LAC 08/16/7 (Responses of Bolivia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Guatemala, Mexico, El Salvador and Uruguay to Part B of CL 2008/16-LAC); and CX/LAC 08/16/7 Add. 1 (Responses of Barbados, Brazil, Haiti and Jamaica); CRD 2 (Information from Dominican Republic); CRD 3 (Information from Cuba); CRD 5 (Information from Paraguay).

NUTRITIONAL ISSUES WITHIN THE REGION (Agenda item 6)⁹

29. The Committee considered the replies of the countries of the Region to Circular Letter CL 2008/16-LAC, Part D. In addition to the written comments, several delegations informed the Committee of the action taken at the national level to address nutrition issues, especially the fortification of several foodstuffs to prevent micronutrient deficiencies.

30. The Representative of WHO indicated that the Inter-American Conference of Ministers of Health and Agriculture had agreed on the action to be taken concerning several nutrition issues, such as trans fatty acids and food fortification. The Representative of FAO drew the attention of the Committee to the activities of FAO in the area of nutrition education and to the training materials that were available on the FAO website for this purpose.

31. The Committee, noting that the increasing prevalence of obesity was a concern in the Region and recognizing the importance of nutrition education, stressed the importance of continued support from FAO and WHO in order to address this serious problem.

32. The Committee agreed that the issues considered under agenda items 4, 5 and 6 should be included in the agenda of the next session, in view of their importance for the Region.

ISSUES OF SIGNIFICANCE TO THE REGION (Agenda item 7)¹⁰

Allocation of resources of the Codex Trust Fund

33. The Delegation of Costa Rica, on behalf of the working group on the Trust Fund, gave a presentation, as recorded in Conference Room Document 7, in which it highlighted the salient points of the document, including concern over the bias that had existed since the inception of the Fund in favour of other regions and to the detriment of Latin America and the Caribbean, given the indicators and categorization of developing countries. As an increasing number of countries of the Region were "graduating" from the Trust Fund and were ceasing to be eligible in terms of criteria of access to the Fund, even though continuing to be developing countries, the support given to the Region was in decline. The present situation was undermining the legitimacy of Codex standards, as universally relevant standards could only be adopted with equal participation of Codex members in the standards development process. Based on these observations, the Delegation presented the conclusions, requirements and proposals of the working group on new criteria for the allocation of funds from the Codex Trust Fund (CRD 7).

34. The Committee thanked Costa Rica for the documents presented and expressed its full support for the conclusions, requirements and proposals that were put forward in them. Many delegations requested that FAO and WHO review and revise the current criteria of categorization and distribution of funds, as the retention of such categorization by FAO and WHO could compromise the principle of neutrality that should govern both organizations in their role as administrators of third party funds. The following specific comments were made:

- The effective participation of developing countries should be taken into account;
- The current criteria of categorization and fund distribution and the employment of developing country grouping were not justified and discriminated against the Latin America and the Caribbean region in relation to other regions, and thus breached the principle of neutrality in an important intergovernmental negotiation forum such as Codex;
- The repeated and documented delays in the final approval of travel authorizations doubled the cost of air fares, with a consequent waste of resources on the part of the Trust Fund. Furthermore, the limited availability of Trust Fund Secretariat staff in the Geneva Office hampered effective and timely communication between countries and the Secretariat. Clear and precise logistic procedures were needed to handle the administrative steps efficiently and within a reasonable timeframe, including the timely dispatch of air ticket and daily allowance to participate in a given meeting;
- The Codex Trust Fund should not cover expenses for capacity building, but concentrate on assisting countries to participate in Codex meetings;
- The administrative costs and decision-making in the management of the Trust Fund lacked the transparency intended at its creation;
- The new criteria for the Trust Fund should duly take into account the measures adopted by beneficiary countries to harmonize national regulations with Codex standards.

⁹ CL 2008/16-LAC, Part D, CX/LAC 08/16/8 (comments of Bolivia, Chile, Costa Rica, Cuba, Guatemala, Mexico, El Salvador, Uruguay), CRD 2 (Dominican Republic); CRD 3 (comments of Cuba), CRD 5 (comments of Paraguay).

¹⁰ CX/LAC 08/16/9, CRD 1 (information from the Codex Secretariat on the length and content of Codex reports), CRD 4 (submission from Uruguay on private standards), CRD 7 (information paper on the allocation of resources of the Codex Trust Fund submitted by a working group led by Costa Rica).

35. The Committee took note of the situation concerning the daily allowances of all delegations financed by the Trust Fund, which were paid from the fourth day of the session, which demonstrated an unjustifiable lack of responsibility and professionalism on the part of the Fund. The Committee also took note of the difficulties that various delegations had experienced in obtaining their air tickets.

36. The Representative of FAO recalled that the Codex Trust Fund had been established to ensure neutrality and objectivity in managing contributions from donors to assist the participation of developing countries in the Codex process. While the criteria for eligibility and allocation of funds reflected the desire and priorities of donors to focus assistance on the countries in greater need, especially those countries which would otherwise not be able to participate, the indicators currently used as the basis for classification of beneficiary countries could be reviewed and improved, possibly under the forthcoming mid-term review of the Trust Fund. In view of the importance of effective participation of developing countries in Codex, FAO had presented to the 30th FAO Regional Conference for Latin America and the Caribbean (April 2008) an information paper analysing the participation of countries of the Region in Codex meetings in the 2005-2007 period¹¹.

37. The Committee stated that contrary to what had been explained, the purpose of the Trust Fund was to help developing countries participate in Codex negotiations and not to ensure neutrality and objectivity. The delegations also expressed their concern over transparency in the management of the Fund.

38. The Representative of WHO stated that the concerns expressed by the countries of the Region were legitimate ones and should be taken seriously. The Representative observed that the management of the Trust Fund was sometimes erratic which compromised its efficiency, diligence and transparency, and that the criteria used by the Trust Fund should be mutually agreed by the donors and the beneficiaries. The Representative also stated that there were no impediments to countries exploring other sources of financial assistance. The Representative undertook to communicate, in writing, the concerns and proposals of the members present to WHO headquarters, including the report of the working group on the Trust Fund as stated in CRD 7.

39. In reply to the question raised as to whether there were constraints or impediments to a government or corporation financing the participation of another government, so long as the necessary independence was maintained in the process of approval of international standards, the Codex Secretariat stated that there were currently no impediments whatsoever to such action. The Committee requested that the detail of this procedure be included in the report, with clarification as to where and when this aspect was amended¹².

40. In conclusion, the Committee agreed to request the Secretariat of the Joint FAO/WHO Codex Trust Fund to give due consideration to the proposals presented in CRD 7 and decided to append these proposals to the present report (see Appendix II). Furthermore, the Committee agreed to request FAO and WHO to facilitate dialogue between donor countries and beneficiary countries so that the identified concerns and proposals for improvement were openly discussed.

Length and content of Codex reports

41. The Delegation of Chile recalled that the 31st Session of the Commission had endorsed the recommendations of the Executive Committee intended to reduce the length of Codex reports and had expressed the following views: reports should not only record the decisions but also reflect the positions of the delegations and the discussion process – this information was essential for the developing countries that had not been able to attend Codex meetings to learn the background to the decisions that had been adopted; and detailed reporting was particularly important in the case of the Executive Committee, in view of its restricted membership. Several delegations supported these views and expressed their disagreement with the decision of the Commission in this respect.

42. Several delegations also pointed out that reports should mention the name of individual members in order to provide clarity and transparency on the positions of delegations; to facilitate reporting by delegates at the national level on their participation in Codex sessions and obtain the support of their superiors for their continued participation in future meetings; and to clarify regional positions in the Executive Committee for the benefit of the members of each region. Some delegations also observed that the contribution of developing countries to discussions in Codex sessions should be reflected in reports in a more balanced way if specific delegations were mentioned.

43. As regards the recommendation that "delegations should strictly refrain from opening substantive discussion during the adoption of the report", the delegations expressed the view that it was sometimes necessary to return to substantive issues that had not been properly reflected in the report, so that proceedings were recorded in a faithful and balanced manner.

¹¹ LARC/08/INF/7

¹² ALINORM 04/27/33, paras 31-33, Appendix II and ALINORM 05/28/41, para 20, Appendix II.

44. The Committee supported the views expressed above and therefore agreed to ask the Commission to reconsider the recommendations on the naming of members (point 1, second indent) and to rescind the recommendation in point 2 of paragraph 26 of ALINORM 08/31/3A on the length and content of Codex reports.

45. In view of the recommendation approved at the 31st Session of the Commission, the Delegation of Argentina proposed to include in the Procedural Manual the following decision: "The names of delegations should be recorded in the report upon their request whenever a decision has been taken by the Commission or its subsidiary bodies despite their opposition", as delegations may not be aware that they had to ask for their objection to be recorded.

46. The Codex Secretariat indicated that the recommendation approved at the 31^{st} Session of the Commission (see para 44) was substantially similar to the provision contained in the final paragraph of the section *Conduct of Meetings* in the *Guidelines on the Conduct of Meetings*¹³ and that *Rule X - Records and Reports*¹³ referred to a statement of minority views. The principle of anonymity of interventions in reports was applied commonly to all statutory bodies of FAO, including Codex and the International Plant Protection Convention (IPPC).

47. The Committee noted the view that FAO rules should not be applied to Codex sessions because of the joint FAO/WHO nature of the programme and the fact that effective participation of countries was hindered more in Codex than in other statutory bodies, and the view that FAO operation and procedures were currently under review in the framework of the FAO Independent External Evaluation, and therefore current FAO rules should not apply directly to Codex reports.

48. Following the comments made by the members of the Committee and the Codex Secretariat, the Committee decided to request the Committee on General Principles to determine whether the current provision in the Procedural Manual was the same as the recommendation approved at the 31st Session of the Commission and, if it was not to determine whether both needed to be retained and, if they were the same, to decide on one of them.

Simultaneous and timely distribution of Codex documents in the official languages of the Commission

49. The Delegation of Colombia recalled that it had raised the issue of the failure to provide simultaneous and timely distribution of reports in the official languages of the Codex at the 31st Session of the Commission, but that it had not been possible to discuss the matter. The Delegation pointed out that the delay in the simultaneous and timely distribution of reports and working documents in the official languages of the Commission was distorting the availability of information to the countries of the Region, which constituted a serious obstacle to achievement of the fifth goal of the Strategic Plan (promoting maximum and effective participation of members). Documents in languages other than English were often distributed close to or after the deadline for comments, which prevented the non-English speaking countries of the Region from presenting their comments in time for consideration by the committees. Many delegations shared these concerns and supported the proposal to request that Codex documents be distributed simultaneously and in a timely manner in the official languages of the Codex.

50. Some delegations proposed to include specific provisions on the simultaneous and timely distribution of documents in the official languages of the Codex in the Procedural Manual, and also noted that, according to the *Guidelines on the Conduct of Meetings*, the Codex Secretariat should ensure that the final report was distributed in the languages of the Committee not later than one month after the end of the session.

51. The Codex Secretariat recalled that the *Guidelines on the Conduct of Meetings* mentioned a deadline of two months before the meeting for distribution of working documents and that their availability depended on their timely preparation by the responsible delegations or working groups, and that committees were encouraged to establish precise time schedules for the preparation of documents, in order to allow sufficient time for their translation and for requesting comments. The Secretariat indicated that the translation of documents and reports was not the responsibility of the Secretariat, but of the host country of the respective Codex committees and task forces, as translation was covered by "operational costs" as mentioned under Rule XIII.4 of the Rules of Procedure.

52. The Committee agreed to propose that the Commission consider a new provision for inclusion in the Procedural Manual to the effect that Codex documents should be distributed in a simultaneous and timely manner in the official languages of the Codex and that no Codex document be distributed when this provision could not be met.

¹³ Procedural Manual of the Codex Alimentarius Commission.

Consensus

53. The Committee had an exchange of views on the desirability of defining "consensus" within Codex, in order to ensure its uniform and non-arbitrary interpretation and application in the Codex decision-making process. Several delegations expressed their concern over the divergent ways consensus had been interpreted and implemented in a number of Codex meetings; therefore, it was of paramount importance that a definition of consensus be established by Codex. In addition, there might be a need to review the Codex procedures in order to avoid resorting to voting in the adoption of standards.

54. The Committee acknowledged the importance of consensus-based decision-making in Codex and agreed that the definition of consensus, as proposed by the Delegation of Paraguay, namely "consensus is the absence of *justified opposition from any member present at the meeting where the decision is taken*" could be proposed at the upcoming session of the Committee on General Principles as a starting point for discussion.

Risk analysis principles applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues

55. The Delegation of Chile recalled that, when considering the risk analysis principles applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues, several delegations had expressed their concern in the Committee on General Principles and in the 31st Session of the Commission on the procedure of periodic review of the maximum residues limits (MRLs). The Delegation expressed the view that the procedure was inconsistent with the general approach to risk analysis in Codex and with the objective of protecting human health, as, according to the current risk analysis principles, MRLs were systematically reviewed after 15 years and could only be revoked on the basis of lack of support from industry. The Delegation pointed out that the revision of food safety standards should be based on scientific risk assessment and that MRLs should therefore be re-evaluated by JMPR when new scientific data were available and should not be revoked only on the basis of commercial considerations or lapse of time, especially in view of the status of Codex standards in the framework of the SPS Agreement. This position was supported by the Committee.

56. The Committee further noted the observations of delegations that:

- the current review procedure also resulted in significant barriers to trade, as some countries applied "zero tolerance" for pesticide residues at the import stage, in the absence of Codex MRLs;
- Codex MRLs were important as a basis for national regulations and as a reference in international trade; and
- several substances proposed for withdrawal were used by member countries at the national level, and revocation of MRLs would result in a reduction in availability of pesticides, especially of those used by developing countries, thereby creating unjustified barriers to trade because of the lack of scientific evidence to support the withdrawal decision.

57. The Committee noted that the Committee on Pesticide Residues had initiated new work on the revision of the risk analysis principles and would consider a proposed revision at its next session. The Codex Secretariat recalled that, in implementing Activity 2.1 of the Strategic Plan 2008-2013, the Committee on General Principles would be reviewing the consistency of risk analysis principles elaborated by relevant committees, including the principles applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues, and invited member countries of the Region to provide their contribution to the review in that framework.

58. The Committee supported the revision of the risk analysis principles applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues in order to strengthen the scientific basis of the process.

Private standards

59. The Delegation of Uruguay introduced Conference Room Document 4 related to the increasing use of private standards in commercial transactions, which undermined the work of multilateral intergovernmental fora such as Codex. The Delegation indicated that private standards placed an unnecessary burden on exporting countries by increasing costs of production and certification of compliance with unnecessarily stricter requirements, especially those related to food safety. The Delegation further indicated that private standards could constitute unjustified technical barriers to trade and that ensuring food safety should be the responsibility of governments, not of the private sector. The Delegation, in conclusion, stressed the need to strengthen the work of Codex and proposed that the Codex Alimentarius Commission take a formal position in relation to private standards, as the World Organization for Animal Health (OIE) had done.

60. Many delegations concurred with the observation of Uruguay and expressed their concern regarding the proliferation of private standards and related certification schemes, whose requirements were not based on science and were more stringent than international standards, thus adding little value to the protection of consumer health. These mainly affected small and medium scale producers of developing countries, thus hampering their competitiveness and market access. The Delegation of Argentina suggested that until the Commission had discussed whether to draw up a position on this matter, the Codex Secretariat should reply to any consultation made in the framework of the WTO on the basis of the principles that govern the work of Codex. In this regard, the attention of the Committee was drawn to the ongoing discussion on this matter in the WTO/SPS Committee and to a questionnaire on private standards that had been circulated by the SPS Committee Secretariat. The Committee also noted that the legal status of private standards under the WTO/SPS Agreement was not clear.

61. Mr Knud Østergaard, Vice-Chair of the Commission, noted that the same debate was taking place in other regions and expressed the view that it would be useful if Codex members could come up with proactive proposals on how to approach this matter within the Codex framework.

62. The Codex Secretariat reminded the Committee that the 62nd Session of the Executive Committee would consider the question of private standards on the basis of a paper prepared by FAO and WHO, and would report its finding to the 32nd Session of the Commission. The FAO Representative informed the Committee that a *Regional Seminar on Private Standards of Plant and Animal Health and Food Safety* had been held in Santiago, Chile, in September 2008, and that the conclusions and recommendations together with other relevant information were available on the website of the FAO Regional Office. In this regard, the Committee noted that there would be follow-up on this matter at an FAO High-Level Conference in 2009.

63. In view of the above, the Committee agreed that Codex work should be strengthened in order to discourage the use and proliferation of private standards and that the Codex Alimentarius Commission should adopt a position in relation to this matter. The Committee encouraged the members of the Region to consider concrete actions that could be taken in the framework of Codex and encouraged them to send their response to the WTO/SPS Committee questionnaire on private standards.

NOMINATION OF THE COORDINATOR (Agenda item 8)¹⁴

64. On the proposal of the Delegation of Argentina, the Committee unanimously agreed to recommend to the 32^{nd} Session of the Commission that Mexico be reappointed for a second term as Coordinator for Latin America and the Caribbean. The Delegation of Mexico thanked all the countries for their support and accepted the nomination.

65. The Committee, taking notice of the willingness of Guatemala to succeed Mexico as Coordinator for Latin America and the Caribbean after 2011, noted that the decision would be taken at the next session of the Committee.

OTHER BUSINESS AND FUTURE WORK (Agenda item 9)

Future work

Proposal for the development of a regional standard for culantro coyote (Agenda item 9a)¹⁵

66. The Committee recalled that its last session had considered a request from the Delegation of Costa Rica to develop a standard for culantro coyote and had agreed that the proposal should be revised in order to clarify some issues.

67. The Delegation of Costa Rica, in collaboration with Bolivia, Guatemala, Mexico and Nicaragua, presented the project document and explained that culantro coyote was an aromatic herb grown in Central America, marketed fresh and very vulnerable to physical damage and contamination, and noted that potential trade problems were related to contamination by *Salmonella* and pesticide residues. The project document also included information on production, consumption and trade, highlighting the growing market for this product.

68. Some delegations noted that the scope of the standard should be clarified in order to make it clear that it would not address food safety issues. The Codex Secretariat recalled that regional commodity standards focused on quality requirements, while microbiological contamination and pesticide residues were addressed in the Committees on Food Hygiene and on Pesticide Residues, respectively.

¹⁴ CX/LAC 08/16/10.

¹⁵ CX/LAC 08/16/11.

69. The Delegation of Costa Rica confirmed that the purpose of the standard was to address quality issues, such as physical damage caused by pests, size of leaves, weight of bundles, presentation or other commercial requirements and that, according to the format of Codex standards, only a general reference would be made to food hygiene and pesticide residue provisions.

70. The Committee noted that trade statistics in Tables 4 and 5 corresponded to "other vegetables" and not to culantro coyote only, and that it would be useful to present specific trade statistics on the product from countries of the Region to justify the development of a regional standard.

71. Several delegations supported the development of a regional standard and were ready to provide their contribution to the process, as they also produced and exported culantro coyote.

72. The Committee agreed to propose new work on a regional standard for culantro coyote and agreed that the project document should be revised by Costa Rica, with the assistance of other delegations in the light of the above discussion, and submitted to the Codex Secretariat by February 2009. Upon approval of the new work proposal by the Commission, a working group led by Costa Rica and open to all interested members and observers¹⁶ would develop the Proposed Draft Regional Standard for circulation by December 2009 at Step 3 and consideration at the next session of the Committee. It was agreed that the working group would work in Spanish and that, where necessary, translation into English would be provided by Argentina.

Proposal for the development of a regional standard for lucuma (Agenda item 9b)¹⁷

73. The Committee recalled that, at the 14th Session of the Committee on Fresh Fruits and Vegetables, it had been noted that some commodities proposed for standardisation appeared to be traded mainly at the regional level, and the Delegation of Peru had agreed to present a proposal for new work on lucuma to the FAO/WHO Coordinating Committee for Latin America and the Caribbean.

74. The Delegation of Peru presented a project document and relevant information on the characteristics of lucuma, a fruit from the inter-Andean valleys consumed fresh or processed, and its current and potential market (fresh and processed), while clarifying that the standard would only cover fresh produce. The Delegation informed the Committee that the main problem related to market access. Some delegations informed the Committee that the main trade problem was related to market access to the European Community: according to the EC Regulation 258/97 on novel foods, those foods that had not been consumed in the EC to a significant degree prior to May 1997 should undergo a complete risk assessment in order to be marketed in the EC. With regard to this Directive, concerns had already been presented to the WTO/SPS Committee on this matter and it was recommended that the countries of the Region considered the revision of EC Regulation 258/97 and its possible impact on international trade. The Committee noted that the issue was related to food safety and would not be addressed in the framework of a regional standard focused on quality criteria.

75. Several delegations supported the drafting of a regional standard for lucuma and were willing to contribute to the process, as they also produced and exported the product.

76. The Committee agreed to propose new work on a regional standard for lucuma and agreed that the project document should be revised by Peru, with assistance from other delegations, and submitted to the Codex Secretariat by February 2009. Upon approval of the new work proposal by the Commission, a working group led by Peru and open to all interested members and observers¹⁸ would develop the Proposed Draft Regional Standard for circulation by December 2009 at Step 3 and consideration at the next session of the Committee. It was agreed that the working group would work in Spanish only.

Proposal for the development of a regional standard for quinoa¹⁹

77. The Delegation of Bolivia introduced a project document for new work on quinoa and highlighted the main aspects related to the characteristics and trading of the product. The Delegation explained that trade in quinoa had expanded in the last few years and that a quality standard for this commodity would assist in ensuring the market value and overall quality of the product, while avoiding potential barriers to trade in the future.

78. The Committee noted that there was currently no significant trade disruption linked to the identity or quality of the product, and felt therefore that it would be advisable to further examine the need for a regional standard at a future session of the Committee. Some delegations expressed their interest in future work on quinoa based on the outcome of a further analysis on the need for new work on this product.

¹⁶ The following delegations expressed their interest in participating: Guatemala, El Salvador, Colombia, Honduras, Nicaragua, Panama, Paraguay and Trinidad and Tobago.

¹⁷ CX/LAC 08/16/12.

¹⁸ The delegations of Chile and Colombia expressed their interest in participating in the working group.

¹⁹ CX/LAC 08/16/13.

79. In view of the above, the Committee agreed to invite the Delegation of Bolivia to submit a revised project document for consideration at the next session of the Committee.

Other business

Grated desiccated coconut

80. The Delegation of Brazil informed the Committee that the Committee on Processed Fruits and Vegetables was revising the *Standard for Grated Desiccated Coconut* (CODEX STAN 177-1991) through a working group led by Brazil. The Delegation stated that this product was relevant to many countries of the Region and reasserted its keen interest in contributing to the revision or standardization of other products falling within the terms of reference of the CCPFV.

Steviol glycosides (estevia)

81. The Delegation of Paraguay informed the Committee of the conclusion of the safety evaluation of steviol glycosides carried out by the 69th meeting of the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives (JECFA). In view of this, the Delegation requested the support of the Committee for initiating steps for the establishment of maximum levels for steviol glycosides at the next session of the Committee on Food Additives, with a view to their inclusion in the *General Standard for Food Additives* (CODEX STAN 192-1995), given that this was a natural sweetener whose use was in compliance with the *WHO National Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health.*

82. The Committee noted that steviol glycosides had been or were being approved as a food additive sweetener at national or subregional level in various countries of the Region, and expressed its great interest in supporting work on steviol glycosides within the Committee on Food Additives by developing maximum levels for steviol glycosides for inclusion in the GSFA.

DATE AND PLACE OF NEXT SESSION (Agenda item 10)

83. The Committee was informed that its 17^{th} Session would be held in approximately two years time and that more detailed arrangements would be communicated to Members following the appointment of the Coordinator by the 32^{nd} Session of the Commission.

<u>ANNEX</u> SUMMARY OF STATUS OF WORK

SUBJECT MATTER	STEP	ACTION BY	DOCUMENT REFERENCE (ALINORM 09/32/36)
Draft proposed regional standards for: - culantro coyote - lucuma	1/2/3	31 st CAC Working Groups 17 th CCLAC	paras. 72 and 76
Project document on the standardization of quinoa		Bolivia 17 th CCLAC	para. 79

LIST OF PARTICIPANTS LISTE DES PARTICIPANTS LISTA DE PARTICIPANTES

<u>Chairperson</u>: <u>Président</u>: <u>Presidente</u>:

<u>Assistant to the Chairperson:</u> <u>Assistant du Président:</u> <u>Asistente del Presidente</u>:

ARGENTINA / ARGENTINE

Gabriela Alejandra Catalani

Coordinadora Técnica Punto Focal del CODEX Argentina Sria. de Agricultura, Ganadería y Pesca y Alimentos Av. Paseo Colón 922, Planta Baja, Oficina 29, C.P. C1063ACW, Buenos Aires ARGENTINA **Tel**:+54-11 4349 25 49 **Fax**:+54-11 4349 25 49 **E-mail:** codex@mecon.gov.ar gcatal@mecon.gov.ar

Nadia Soledad Baucia

Asesora Secretaria de Agricultura, Ganadería Pesca y Alimentos Av. Paseo Colon nro 922 piso 2 of 222 ARGENTINA **Tel:** +05411 4349 2236 **E-mail:** <u>baucia@hotmail.com</u> <u>nsbauc@mecon.gov.ar</u>

BELIZE / BELICE

José Trejo Acting Director Belize Bureau of Standards Ministry of Works Compound Power Lane Belmopan City BELIZE Tel: +501-822-0446/501 822 0447 Fax:+501 822 2571 E-mail: bbs@btl.net; josetrejo.bz@gmail.com

Dr. FRANCISCO RAMOS GÓMEZ

Director General de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez Estado de México C.P. 53950 Tel: 57 29 91 00 Fax: 55 20 97 15 E-mail: framos@economia.gob.mx INGRID MACIEL PEDROTE Director de Normalización Internacional Dirección General de Normas Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez Estado de México C.P. 53950 Tel: 57 29 91 00 Fax: 55 20 97 15 E-mail: imaciel@economia.gob.mx

BOLIVIA / BOLIVIE

José Luis Soto Mendizábal

Responsable Área de Socio-Economía, Rubro Granos Andinos PROINPA Calle Hnos Manchego 2526 (Sopocachi) La Paz, BOLIVIA **Tel:** +591 2 2141209 **Fax:** +591 2435384 **E-mail:**jl.soto@proinpa.org josesoto1@yahoo.com

Carola Zeballos Coria

Jefe de Inocuidad Alimentaria INLASA - Ministerio Salud Rafael Zubieta N° 1889 (Lado Estado Mayor general) Miraflores. La Paz, BOLIVIA **Tel:** +591-2-226670 **Fax:** + 591 2 2228254 **E-mail:** carolazeballos@yahoo.es

BRAZIL / BRASIL / BRÉSIL

Felipe Haddock Lobo Goulart Second Secretary Permanent Representation of Brazil To Fao Via Santa Maria Dell'Anima, 32-00186. Rome, Italy Tel: +39 06 6789353 E-mail: fgoulart@brafao.it

Lucas Medeiros Dantas

Manager Office Of Food Science And Technology Actions National Health Surveillance Agency SEPN 511, BLOCO A, Edificio BITTAR II – 2° Andar BRASÍLIA /DF – BRAZIL CEP: 70750-541 **Tel:** +55-61-3448-6290 **Fax:** 55-61-3448-6274 **E-mail:** lucas.medeiros@anvisa.gov.br

Carlos Henrique Angrisani

Second-Secretary Ministry of Foreign Relations Palacio Itamaraty. Sala 531. Brasilia. DF. BRASIL **Tel:** +55 61 3411 8921 **E-mail:** angrisan@mre.gov.br

Andréa María Andrade

Especialista Em Regulación E Vigilância Sanitária Agencia Nacional De Vigilancia Sanitaria – ANVISA SEPN 511 Bloco A Ed. Bittar II 2º andar CEP 70750-541, Brasília-DF, BRASIL **Tel:** +55 61 3448-6205 **E-mail:** andrea.maria@anvisa.gov.br

Denise Resende

Gerente General Agencia Nacional de Vigilancia Sanitaria ANVISA SEPN 511 Bloco A Ed. Bittar II 2º andar CEP 70750-541, Brasília-DF, BRASIL **Tel:**+ 55 61 3448-6091 **Fax:** + 55 61 34486274 **E-mail:** <u>denise.resende@anvisa.gov.br</u>

Guilherme Antonio Da Costa Júnior

Director of Department of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Negotiations Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food Supply Esplanada dos Ministérios, Bloco "D" - 3° Andar -Edifício Sede - Sala 352 - CEP: 70.043-900 - Brasília – DF. BRAZIL **Tel:** +55 (61) 32182731 **E-mail:** guilherme.costa@agricultura.gov.br; ggguilherme@hotmail.com

CHILE / CHILI

Antonieta Urrutia Anabalón

Ingeniero Agrónomo Servicio Agrícola y Ganadero Avenida Bulnes No. 140, Piso 5 Santiago de Chile, CHILE **Tel:** + (562) 3451 5851 **Fax:** + (562) 3451 587 **E-mail:** <u>antonieta.urrutia@sag.gob.cl</u>

Jaime Cornejo Catalan

Asesor en inocuidad de los Alimentos Ministerio de Salud Enrique Mac Iver 459, 8º Piso, Santiago de Chile CHILE **Tel:** + (562) 5740 614 **E-mail:** jcornejo@minsal.cl

COLOMBIA / COLOMBIE

Javier Muñoz Ibarra

Profesional Especializado Ministerio de Comercio, Industria y Turismo Calle 28 Nº 13 A 15 Bogotá, COLOMBIA **Tel:** +571-6067676 EX 1205 **E-mail:** jmunoz@mincomercio.gov.co

Jhon Jairo Zapata Osorio

Subdirector Técnico Ministerio de la Protección Social/ Secretaria Departamental de Salud del Valle del Cauca Unidad Ejecutora de Saneamiento del Valle del Cauca Carrera 37a No. 4 - 88 Cali Valle del Cauca, COLOMBIA **Tel:** +572 5580868 Ext:101 **E-mail:** jjzost@hotmail.com, jzapata@uesvalle.gov.co

COSTA RICA

Isabel Cristina Araya Badilla

Directora de Mejora Regulatoria y Reglamentación Técnica. Punto Contacto del CODEX en Costa Rica y Coordinadora del Comité Nacional del Codex. Ministerio de Economía, Industria y Comercio Los Colegios, Moravia. Del Colegio Lincoln 200 m Oeste, 100 m Sur y 200 m Oeste. Continuo a la Sinfónica Nacional. COSTA RICA **Tel:** +(506) 2236-2538 **Fax:** + (506) 2297 1439 **E-mail:** <u>iaraya@meic.go.cr</u>

Gina Monteverde Castro

Supervisora Fitosanitaria Servicio Fitosanitario del Estado Heredia, COSTA RICA **Tel**:+ (506) 2260-6721 **Fax:** +(506) 2260 6721 **E-mail:** gmonteverde@protecnet.go.cr

Guillermo Rodríguez Calderón

Supervisor Fitosanitario Servicio Fitosanitario del Sanitario 400 metros, Norte de la Universidad Nacional de Costa Rica, en Barreal de Heredia, , COSTA RICA **Tel:** +(506) 2260 6721 **Fax:** +(506) 2260 6721 **E-mail:** grodriguez@protecnet.go.cr

Marcela Patricia Rojas Gómez

Asesora Económica Secretaría Técnica del CODEX en Costa Rica Ministerio de Economía, Industria y Comercio Los Colegios, Moravia. Del Colegio Lincoln 200 m Oeste, 100 m Sur y 200 m Oeste. Continuo a la Sinfónica Nacional. COSTA RICA **Tel:** +506 2235-2700 Ext 265 **Fax:** +506 2235 8192 **E-mail:** <u>mrojas@meic.go.cr ;</u> <u>infocodex@meic.go.cr</u>

CUBA

Rene Antonio Fernandez Infante

Director de Normalización Oficina Nacional de Normalización/NC Calle E No.261 entre 11 y 13 - Vedado – La Habana – CUBA **Tel:** +537 8300022 **Fax:** (537) 836-8048 **E-mail:** <u>renef@ncnorma.cu</u>

Yarisa Domínguez Ayllón

Médico Especialista de MGI y Pediatría Instituto de Nutrición e Higiene de los Alimentos Infanta No 1158 Clavel y Llinas Centro Habana CUBA **Tel:** +537 8338629 **E-mail:** <u>yarisa65@yahoo.com</u>

Gilberto O'Farrill Delis

Esp. Dir. de Regulaciones Técnicas y Calidad Ministerio del Comercio Exterior Infanta No 16 esquina 23. Vedado. Ciudad de La Habana CUBA **Tel:** +537 838 0454 **E-mail:** gilberto.ofarril@mincex.cu

Orlando José Ruqué Martí

Analista Superior Ministerio de la Industria Pesquera 5ta Ave. y 246, Playa, Ciudad de La Habana, CUBA, CP 10900 **Tel:**+ 537 209 72 94 **E-mail:** <u>orlandorm@mip.telemar.cu</u>

DOMINICA / DOMINIQUE

Nadia Pacquette-Anselm Technical Officer Dominica Bureau Of Standards 9 Great Marlborough Street, P.O BOX 1015 ROSEAU, COMMONWEALTH OF DOMINICA Tel: (767) 448-1685 Fax: (767) 449-9217 E-mail: npanselm@dominicastandards.org info@dominicastandards.org

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC REPÚBLICA DOMINICANA

RÉPUBLIQUE DOMINICAINE

Modesto B. Pérez B. Coordinador de Normas Alimenticias (Programa CODEX) Secretaría de Estado de Salud Pública y Asistencia Social(SESPAS) Av. Tiradentes esq. Av. San Cristobal, Ensanche La Fe, Santo Domingo, D.N. REPÚBLICA DOMINICANA Tel: (809)541-3121 ext. 2381 Fax: (809)541-0382 E-mail: codexsespas@yahoo.com codexsespas@gmail.com

ECUADOR / ÉQUATEUR

Margoth Hipatia Nogales

Presidenta Comité Nacional del CODEX Servicio Ecuatoriano de Sanidad Agropecuaria Av. Eloy Alfaro y Av. Amazonas (Quito-Ecuador) ECUADOR **Tel:** +593 2 2548 823 **E-mail:** <u>hnogales@sesa.gov.ec</u>

Inés Yolanda Lara Valdez

Lider de S. Sistema de Alimentos Ministerio de Salud Pública Av. República del Salvador y Suecia. Quito ECUADOR **Tel:** +593 2 3814400 **E-mail:** ylara@msp.gov.ec, larayoly@gmail.com

Carmen Haydee Miranda Yela

Responsable de Inocuidad Agrícola. Servicio Ecuatoriano Sanidad Agropecuaria. Avda. Eloy Alfaro y Amazonas esquina Edificio Ministerio de Agricultura y Ganaderia Piso 9 Quito, ECUADOR **Tel:** +12567232 **E-mail:** <u>cmiranda@sesa.gov.ec</u>

Elena Villacrés Poveda

Investigador Agropecuario Instituto Nacional Autónomo de Investigaciones Agropecuarias Av. Eloy Alfaro N° 30-350 y Amazonas. Edificio MAG 4to piso ECUADOR **Tel:** +(593-2)3007134 **E-mail:** <u>elenavillacres9@hotmail.com</u>

EL SALVADOR

Myrna Evelyn Alvarez de Vanegas

Jefe Normalización, Metrología y Certificación de la Calidad.

CONACYT, Punto Focal CODEX Colonia Médica, Pasaje Dr. Guillermo Rodríguez Pacas y Avenida Emilio Alvarez 51 San Salvador, EL SALVADOR **Tel:** +503 22348411 **Fax:** 50322348416 **E-mail:** <u>evanegas@conacyt.gob.sv</u>

GUATEMALA

Antonio Ferraté de la Riva

Coordinador CODEX Alimentarius Guatemala Ministerio de Agricultura, Ganadería y Alimentación 7a. avenida 12-90 zona 13. Edificio Infoagro, Segundo Nivel, Oficina 4 GUATEMALA **Tel:** +(502) 2413 7466 **E-mail:** <u>antonio.ferrate@yahoo.com</u>

Ana Gabriela Marroquín Pazos

Asistente Técnico CODEX Alimentarius Guatemala Ministerio de Agricultura, Ganadería y Alimentación 7a. avenida 12-90 zona 13. Edificio Infoagro, Segundo Nivel, Oficina 4 GUATEMALA **Tel:** +(502) 2413 7466 **E-mail:** <u>codexguatemala@yahoo.com;</u> <u>apazos@maga.gob.gt</u>

HAITI / HAITÍ

Jocelyne Pierre Louis

Directora de Promoción de la Salud Ministerio de Salud Pública Palais des Ministeres No. 59 Rue des Miracles P_au _Pce, HAITI **Tel:** +(509) 3406-5784 **E-mail:** jbplouis@yahoo.fr

HONDURAS

Fanny Aleyda Maradiaga Carranza

Punto de Contacto del CODEX Honduras Secretaria de Agricultura y Ganadería Servicio Nacional de Sanidad Agropecuaria Boulevard Miraflores Ave la FAO, Tegucigalpa,M.D.C, A apdo 340 HONDURAS **Tel:** +(504) 2326213 **Fax:** + (504) 231 0786 **E-mail:** <u>fmaradiaga@senasa-sag.gob.hn</u> <u>hondurascodex@yahoo.com</u>

JAMAICA / JAMAÏQUE

Fay Anderson

Bureau of Standards Jamaica 6 Winchester Road Kingston 10 West Indies, JAMAICA **Tel:** +1(876)926-3140 **E-mail:** <u>fanderson@bsj.org.jm</u>

MEXICO / MÉXICO / MEXIQUE

Eduardo Jaramillo Navarrete

Director Ejecutivo de Operación Internacional de la Coordinación General del Sistema Federal Sanitario Comisión Federal para la Protección contra Riesgos Sanitarios, Secretaría de Salud Av. Monterrey No. 33 Piso 1 Col. Roma, MÉXICO C.P. 06700 **Tel:** + 50 80 52 00 ext 1305 **Fax:** + 52 5552 08 2974 **E-mail:** ejaramillo@salud.gob.mx

Elizabeth Díaz Bautista

Gerente de Asuntos Internacionales en Inocuidad Alimentaria Coordinación General del Sistema Federal Sanitaria Comisión Federal para la Protección contra riesgos Sanitarios (COFEPRIS) Secretaría de Salud Av. Monterrey No. 33 Piso: 1 Delegación Cuauhtémoc. MÉXICO **Tel:** +55111032 **E-mail:** gucyvader@gmail.com

Irma Rossana Sánchez Delgado

Verificador Dictaminador Especializado C Coordinación General del Sistema Federal Sanitario Comisión Federal para la Protección contra riesgos Sanitarios (COFEPRIS) Secretaría de Salud Monterrey 33 piso 3 Col. Roma Del. Cuauhtémoc MÉXICO.06700 Tel: +50805200 Ext. 1146 E-mail: irsanchez@salud.gob.mx

María Guadalupe Arizmendi Ramírez

Enlace de Inocuidad Alimentaria Comisión Federal para la Protección contra riesgos Sanitarios (COFEPRIS) Secretaría de Salud Monterrey 33 piso 3 Col. Roma Del. Cuauhtémoc MÉXICO.06700 **Tel:** +5080 5200 Ext 1146 **E-mail:** garizmendir@salud.gob.mx

José Alberto Rangel Cordero

Gerente de Dictamen de Productos y Servicios de Uso y Publicidad. Comisión Federal para la Protección contra riesgos Sanitarios (COFEPRIS) Secretaría de Salud Monterrey 33 piso 3 Col. Roma Del. Cuauhtémoc MÉXICO.06700 Tel: +50 80 52 00 Ext:1271 E-mail: jarc@salud.gob.mx Subdirectora Ejecutiva de Políticas de Riesgos Comisión Federal para la Protección contra riesgos Sanitarios (COFEPRIS) Secretaría de Salud Monterrey 33 piso 9 Col. Roma Del. Cuauhtémoc MÉXICO.06700 **Tel:** +50 80 52 00 Ext: 1414 **E-mail:** nidiacoyotee@salud.gob.mx

Gabriela Alejandra Jiménez Rodríguez

Vicepresidente de la Industria Láctea CANACINTRA Agricultura/SAGARPA Municipio Libre 377 Piso 2 ala B, Colonia Santa Cruz Atoyac, Delegación Benito Juárez, C.P. 03310 MÉXICO. **Tel:** +52 55 38 71 10 00 Ext. 28313 **E-mail:** gjimenez.dgvdt@sagarpa.gob.mx

Francisco Javier Ramos García

Director General de Investigación Pesquera en el Pacífico Sur. Instituto Nacional de Pesca Playa Ventanas S/N Carretera Manzanillo-Campos C.P. 28200, Manzanillo Colima, MÉXICO **Tel:** +3143 3237 50 y 51 **E-mail:** francisco.ramos@inapesca.sagarpa.gob.mx

Andrés Antonio Seefoó Ramos

Subdirector de Tecnología Instituto Nacional de Pesca Playa Ventanas S/N Carretera Manzanillo-Campos C.P. 28200, Manzanillo Colima, MÉXICO **Tel:** +3143 3237 50 y 51 **E-mail:** andres.seefoo@inapesca.sagarpa.gob.mx

Beatriz Haydeé Pelayo C.

Representante FIL-IDF México Federación Internacional de Lechería FIL-IDF México Pedro Santacilia No. 260, Col. Iztlaccihualt, México D.F. C.P. 03520. MÈXICO **Tel:** +52 5550001405 **Fax:** +5255 56010903 **E-mail:** <u>bhpelayo@prodigy.net.mx</u> <u>definbhpc@yahoo.com</u>

Jennifer Daniel Chavero

Vicepresidente de la Industria Láctea /CANACINTRA/ Danisco Mexicana S.A de C.V. Poniente 122 No. 627 Col Industrial Vallejo CP 02300. México D.F. **Tel:** +52 55 50784400 **E-mail:** jennifer.daniel@danisco.com

Elvia Aguilar

Comisión de Salud (CONCAMIN) Rubén Darío 115. Colonia Bosque de Chapultepec. C.P. 11580. MÉXICO. **Tel:** +5262-2129 **E-mail:** <u>elaguilar@la.ko.com</u>

NICARAGUA

Salvador Efrain Guerrero Gutierrez

Oficina de Normas Internacionales/ Punto Focal del Codex – Nicaragua Ministerio de Fomento, Industria y Comercio Km 3 1/2 carretera masaya, contiguo a Metrocentro. Frente al CHAMAN. NICARAGUA **Tel:** +267 4551 Ext. 1238 **E-mail:** <u>codex@mific.gob.ni;</u> <u>salvador.guerrero@mific.gob.ni</u>

PANAMA / PANAMÁ

Vielka Cedeño de Balabarca

Médico Veterinario Supervisor Nacional.de Inspección Nacional de Plantas de Alimentos. Ministerio de Salud, Departamento de Protección de Alimentos Ancon, República de Panamá, PANAMÁ. **Tel:**+ 507 512 9180 **Fax:**+ 507 512 9114/507 512 9186 **E-mail:** <u>vielkax30@hotmail.com</u>

Carmela Castillo Correa

Jefa del Departamento de Evaluaciones Sanitarias y Fitosanitarias Autoridad Panameña de Seguridad de Alimentos Ave. Ricardo J. Alfaro, Sun Towers Mall, Piso 2 Rep. de Panamá, PANAMÁ. **Tel:** +507 522 0003 **Fax:** +507 522 0014 **E-mail:** ccastillo@aupsa.gob.pa

PARAGUAY

Elsi Carolina Ovelar Fernández

Directora General Instituto Nacional de Alimentación y Nutrición (MSPyBS) Itapúa esq. Stma. Trinidad, PARAGUAY. **Tel:** +595 21 294 073 **Fax:** +595 2120 68 74 **E-mail:** <u>direccion@inan.gov.py</u>

Stella Josefina Maciel Salinas

Jefe, Unidad de Asuntos Internacionales Servicio Nacional de Calidad y Salud Animal Ruta Mcal. Estigarribia KM. 10.5 San Lorenzo – PARAGUAY **Tel**:+(595.21) 590.453 **E-mail:** smaciel@senacsa.gov.py

Hugo Federico Idoyaga Benítez

Director General Dirección General de Calidad e Inocuidad de Productos de Origen Animal Servicio Nacional de Calidad y Salud Animal Ruta Mcal. Estigarribia Km. 10.5 – San Lorenzo – PARAGUAY **Tel**: +(595.21) 582 – 161 **Fax:** +(595 21) 582 - 161 **E-mail:** <u>digecipoa@senacsa.gov.py</u>

Rocío Abed

Instituto Nacional de Tecnología, Normalización y Metrología (INTN) Secretaria Ejecutiva del Comité Nacional Avda. Gral. Artigas No. 3973 esquina gral Roa, Barrio Santisima Trinidad, Asunción, PARAGUAY **Tel**: + 595 21 290 160; 597 981 199 091 **E-mail:** <u>codex@intn.gov.py:</u> <u>rocioabed@yahoo.es</u>

Juana Concepción Zaracho de Irazusta

Asesora Técnica Instituto Nacional de Alimentación y Nutrición (MSPyBS) Av. Santa Trinidad e Itapua Asunción PARAGUAY. **Tel:** +595 21 206 874 **E-mail:** jcz_irazusta@hotmail.com

PERU / PERÚ / PÉROU

Ana María Coronado Núñez Secretaria Técnica Comité Nacional CODEX Ministerio de Salud –DIGESA Calle las Amapolas 350 urb. San Eugenio Lima, PERÚ. Tel: +511+98029001/442 8353 Axo. 112 E-mail: acoronado@digesa.minsa.gob.pe; cncperu@digesa.minsa.gob.pe

Cesar Augusto Ortega Jiménez

Inspector Sanitario Oficial Dirección General de Salud Ambiental – DIGESA Calle Las Amapolas N° 350 Urb. San Eugenio Lince Lima, PERÚ. **Tel:** + 511 991537276/+511 442-8353 Axo. 126 **E-mail:** <u>cortega@digesa.minsa.gob.pe</u>

SAINT LUCIA SANTA LUCÍA

SAINTE-LUCIE

Fulgence St. Prix

Standards Officer/CODEX Contact Point Saint Lucia Bureau Of Standards Bisee Industrial Estate P.O.Box CP 5412 Waterfront Castries, ST. LUCIA. **Tel:** +1-758-453-0049/456-0102/456-0546 **Fax:** +1-758-452-3561 **E-mail:** <u>f.stprix@slbs.org</u>

SURINAME

Ratna Ramrattansing Legal Officer Of Ministry Of Agriculture Chair Person National CODEX Committee Letitia Vriesdelaan 8-10, Paramaribo, SURINAME. Tel: +597 479112#252 E-mail: <u>ratna lvv@yahoo.com</u>

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO TRINIDAD Y TOBAGO TRINITÉ-ET-TOBAGO

Cheryl Scott-Alvarez

Ag. Chief chemist & Director Food & Drugs Division 92 Frederick Street Port Of Spain, TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO **Tel:** + 868-623-5242; +868 685 7010 (Célular) **Fax:** + 868 623 2477 **E-mail:** <u>rcalvarez2004@yahoo.co.uk</u> <u>realvarez200400@gmail.com</u>

URUGUAY

Otilia Betty Mandl Motta

Subdirectora Ministerio Ganadería, Agricultura y Pesca Millan 4703 Montevideo, URUGUAY **Tel:** +598-23098410 **E-mail:** <u>bmandl@mgap.gub.uy</u>

OBSERVER COUNTRIES PAÍSES OBSERVADORES

PAYS OBSERVATEURS

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ESTADOS UNIDOS DE AMÉRICA ÉTATS-UNIS D'AMÉRIQUE

Paulo Almeida

Associate Manager U.S. Codex Office U.S. Department of Agriculture 1400 Independence Ave., SW, Room 4861S Washington, DC 20250-3700 USA **Tel:** +202/690-4042 **E-mail:** paulo.almeida@fsis.usda.gov

Kenneth Lowery

International Trade Specialist USDA Foreign Agricultural Service Office Of Scientific And Technical Affairs International Regulations And Standards Division 1400 Independence Avenue SW mail stop 1014 Washington, DC 20250-1014 USA **Tel:** +202 720 5461 **Fax:** +202 7200433 **E-mail:** Kenneth. Lowery@fas.usda.gov

Raúl Guerrero

Consultor 793 N. Ontare Rd. Santa Bárbara California 93105 **Tel**: 805 898 1830 **E-mail:** guerrero raul j@yahoo.com

REPÚBLICA DE GUINEA ECUATORIAL EQUATORIAL GUINEA GUINÉE ÉQUATORIALE

Excmo Señor Don Teodoro Nguema Obiang-Mangue

Cargo:Ministro de Agricultura y Bosques Dirección:Avda.Rey HassanII Malabo – REPÚBLICA GUINEA ECUATORIAL Tel:00-240-273927 Fax: 240 093178

Don Andrés Ndong Micha

Director General Ganadería Ministerio de Agricultura y Bosques Avda. Rey HassanII Malabo – REPÚBLICA GUINEA ECUATORIAL Tel: +240274215 Fax: 240 093178

Excmo Señor Don Pascual Bacale Mbiang

Cargo: Embajador Permanente en la FAO Dirección: Roma (Italia) Institución: Ministerio de Agricultura y Bosques

OBSERVERS OBSERVADORES OBSERVATEURS

INTER-AMERICAN INSTITUTE FOR COOPERATION ON AGRICULTURA

INSTITUTO INTERAMERICANO DE COOPERACIÓN PARA LA AGRICULTURA (IICA)

Ricardo A. Molins

Director, Sanidad Agropecuaria e Inocuidad de Alimentos Instituto Interamericano de Cooperación para la Agricultura IICA San Isidro de Vazquez de Coronado, San José, COSTA RICA **Tel:** +506 2216 0184 **E-mail**: <u>ricardo.molins@iica.int y</u> mariela.madrigal@iica.int

INTERNATIONAL LIFE SCIENCES INSTITUTE

Javier Luna

Director Ejecutivo ILSI de México **Tel:** +5255 2652 **E-mail**:<u>ilsimex@prodigy.net.mx</u>

Alexandre Novachi

Member of the Scientific Council ILSI Brasil Rua Carlos Gomes Santo Amaro Sao Paulo Brasil 924/04743-903 **Tel:** +5511 3882 2174 **E-mail**:alexandri.novachi@bms.com

Maria Elena Olguín

Gerente de Regulaciones CADBURY ADAMS Av. Santa Fe no. 485 Piso 6 Col. Cruz Manca Del. Cuajimalpa de Morelos 05349 MÉXICO **Tel:** +1105 3093 **E-mail**:elena.olguin@cs-americas.com

Antonio Mantoan

Vice presidente ILSI México Av Revolución 1267 Col. Tlacopac 01049 MÉXICO D.F. Tel: +5553 3728 96 E-mail: antonio.mantoan@ bms.com

Ángeles Ruìz Ortìz

Investigadora UNAM **Tel:** +5255 2652 **E-mail**:<u>ilsimex@prodigy.net.mx</u>

Elizabeth Hernàndez Vàzquez

Kraft Foods de Mexico Asuntos Científicos y Regulatorios H.Congreso de la Union No 5840 Col.tres estrellas Mexico DF. Codigo postal: 07820 **Tel**: (52) 57477963 **E-mail**:<u>Elizabeth.hernandez@krafla.com</u>

Zully Corona

Grupo BIMBO Asuntos Científicos y Regulatorios Prol. Paseo de la reforma 1000 Col. Peña Bca. Santa FE Delegacion Alvaro Obregon Mexico D.F, MÉXICO Tel: +52686600 E-mail:zcorozuv@grupobimbo.com

José Luis Flores Luna

Consultor Gabriel Mancera No 608 Int. No 2 Col. del Valle 03110 México D.F, MÉXICO **Tel:** +(52) 5511077174 **E-mail:** jlfloresluna@gmail.com

Susana Malangón

Asuntos Regulatorios Cadbury Adams Avenida Santa Fe No 485 Piso 6 Col. Cruz Manza Del. Cuajimalpa de Morelos O5349 MÉXICO Tel:+11053214 E-mail:susana.malagon@cs-americas.com Erik Vargas Cadena

ILSI México A.C Francisco Petrarca No 1330 Desp.403 Col. Chapultepec Morales 11570 MÉXICO **Tel:** 5255-2652 TESORERO

JOINT FAO/WHO SECRETARIAT

SECRETARIADO CONJUNTO FAO/OMS

SECRÉTARIAT CONJOINT FAO/OMS

Dr Kazuaki Miyagishima Secretary, CODEX Alimentarius Comission Viale delle terme di Caracalla 00153 Rome, Italy Tel.: +390657054390 Fax: +39 06 570 54593 E-mail: Kazuaki.Miyagishima@fao.org

Ms Selma H. Doyran

Senior Food Standards Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 Rome, ITALY Tel.: +39 06 570 55826 Fax: +39 06 570 54593 **E-mail:** selma.doyran@fao.org

Ms Gracia Brisco López

Food Standards Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Viale Delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 Rome, ITALY **Tel.:** +39 06 570 52700 **Fax:** +39 06 570 54593 **E-mail:** gracia.brisco@fao.org

FAO

Dra Maya Piñeiro, Ph.D

Coordinadora Sanidad e Inocuidad Agroalimentaria Oficial Principal de Inocuidad y Calidad de los Alimentos Oficina Regional de la FAO para América Latina y el Caribe Avda. Dag Hammarskjold 3241, Vitacura Casilla 10095, SANTIAGO, CHILE **Tel:** 562 923 2100 **Directo** 562 923 2208 **E-mail:** maya.pineiro@fao.org www.rlc.fao.org

WHO / PAHO OMS / OPS

Dr. Genaro W. García

Regional Advisor on Food Safety Veterinary Public Health Unit Disease, Prevention and Control World Health Organization Regional Office for the Americas (WHO/AMRO) 525, 23rd Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20037-2895

<u>SPECIAL GUEST</u> INVITADO ESPECIAL INVITÉ SPÉCIAL

Knud Østergaard

Vice-Chair, Codex Alimentarius Commission Head of Division Ministry of Food Agriculture and Fisheries Danish Veterinary and Food Administration Morkhoj Bygade 19 Dk 2860 Soborg **Tel**: +45 33 95 60 00 **Fax**: +45 33 95 60 01 **E-mail**: <u>koe@fvst.dk</u>

<u>SECRETARÍA TÉCNICA</u> TECHNICAL SECRETARIAT

SECRÉTARIAT TECHNIQUE

Jorge Antonio López Zárate

Subdirector para la Atención del CODEX Alimentarius y otros Organismos Dirección General de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes, Naucalpan de Juárez CP. 53950 Estado de México **Tel:** (5255) 5729 9100 Ext. 43218 **Fax:** 5520 9715 **E-mail**: jalopezz@economia.gob.mx

Michelle Vizueth Chávez

Jefe de Oficina para la Atención del CODEX Alimentarius Dirección General de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez CP. 53950 Estado de México **Tel:** (5255) 5729 9100 Ext. 43220 **Fax:** 5520 9715 **E-mail:** <u>codexmex2@economia.gob.mx</u>

TECHNICAL SUPPORT SUPPORT TECHNIQUE SOPORTE TÉCNICO

Yessika Nayelli Melgar Rivera

Dirección Internacional de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez CP. 53950 Estado de México **Tel:** (5255) 5729 9480

Carla Resendis Caraza

Dirección Internacional de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez CP. 53950 Estado de México **Tel:** (5255) 5729 9480

Liliana C. Olivares San Agustín

Dirección Internacional de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez CP. 53950 Estado de México **Tel**: (5255) 5729 9480

Ernesto Juárez Martínez

Dirección Internacional de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez CP. 53950 Estado de México **Tel**: (5255) 5729 9480

Víctor Iván Calderón Ortega

Dirección Internacional de Normas Secretaría de Economía Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No. 6 Sección Fuentes Naucalpan de Juárez CP. 53950 Estado de México **Tel**: (5255) 5729 9480

Proposal of new criteria for the allocation of funds:

Codex Alimentarius Trust Fund²⁰

Conclusions:

- 1. There has always been a bias in distribution favouring certain regions.
- 2. The matching requirements scale results, over time, in some regions experiencing a drop in participation in relation to other regions. Latin America and the Caribbean is one of the regions most affected.

2. Requests of Latin America and the Caribbean to FAO/WHO on the administration of the fund

- 1. Clarification of duration of the fund and resources available annually.
- 2. Provision of statistics for transparency of fund use:
 - a) Costs of participation, number of members, countries graduating.
 - b) Participation in activities other than meetings.
 - c) Number of countries that received support and continue assisting continuity.
 - d) Prioritization of meetings requested by countries and information on results after the meeting. (Availability of information on how much will be allocated to each region per year and information on requests made by countries).
 - e) Information on administrative decisions and costs:
 - Who decides on the use of the fund, administrative costs. If there are established procedures for audit reports and distribution of allowances to beneficiaries.
 - Details of administrative cost.
- 3. Proposed rechannelling of funds.
 - Consider classification as developing country as indicator of eligibility.
 - On that basis, build an indicator to measure effective and continuous participation in Codex based on the following aspects:
 - Each country identifies the committees it usually attends with its own resources and the priority committees it would like to attend with fund support.
 - That information be updated every five years.
 - That priority changes be permitted in the interval with justifications provided.
 - o Percentage of written comments in relation to all documents consulted in the priority committees
 - o Level of harmonization of Codex standards with national standards and national regulations.
 - Build a classification of countries in which these factors are weighted to determine the distribution of funds.
 - Allow a period of two years on which to evaluate this participation.
- 4. While the criteria are being redefined, arrangements for the Region to re-enter the fund at year 1 to address the current problem of regional bias.
- 5. Support for training to be dealt with separately.
- 6. These considerations should be given serious attention and the criteria for fund allocation should be genuinely revisited, otherwise the Region would be obliged to seek alternative mechanisms of cooperation that do not leave it at a disadvantage in Codex decision-making.

²⁰

The original presented as CRD 7 by a working group made up of Antigua, Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Dominica, Jamaica, Mexico, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Saint Lucia and Uruguay.